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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT DISTRICT OF OREGON

ADAM SWEET, an individual, and 2BROTHERS MOVING & DELIVERY, a Washington corporation individually and as successor in interest to ADAM SWEET dba 2BROTHERS MOVING & DELIVERY,
Plaintiffs,
v.
HARDY MYERS, in his official capacity as the Attorney General of Oregon; GAIL ACHTERMAN, in her official capacity as the Chair of the Oregon Transportation Commission, Oregon Department of Transportation; MICHAEL NELSON, in his official capacity as the Vice Chair of the Oregon Transportation Commission, Oregon Department of Transportation; JANICE WILSON, in her official capacity as a member of the Oregon Transportation Commission, Oregon Department of Transportation; ALAN BROWN, in his official capacity as a member of the Oregon Transportation Commission, Oregon Department of Transportation; DAVID LOHMAN, in his official capacity as a member of the Oregon Transportation Commission, Oregon Department of Transportation; GREGG DAL PONTE, in his official capacity as the Administrator of the Motor Carrier Transportation Division, Oregon Department of Transportation,
Defendants.

Civ. No.  	

COMPLAINT
CIVIL RIGHTS ACTION (42 U.S.C. § 1983) DECLARATORY AND INJUNCTIVE RELIEF

INTRODUCTION
1. This case challenges the constitutionality of a state law that deprives Plaintiffs of their constitutional right to earn a living in a common occupation of their choice. That right is guaranteed by the Due Process, Equal Protection, and Privileges or Immunities Clauses of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution, as well as the privileges or immunities clause of the Oregon Constitution.
2. Plaintiff Adam Sweet is the director of Plaintiff 2Brothers Moving & Delivery Inc., a small moving company in Portland that has provided a range of moving services to both residential and commercial clients, including furniture deliveries, packing and loading, and full service moving with trucks.
3. Adam and the employees of 2Brothers have made 2Brothers into a successful and popular business. Unfortunately, due to the licensing requirements set forth in ORS 825 et seq., the Plaintiffs are subjected to a procedure which provides an unequal and unconstitutionally protectionist advantage to established moving companies who are able to limit their own prospective competition. Specifically, the law allows established moving companies to protest applications for the issuing of new licenses to potential competitors like 2Brothers, and to substantially burden applicants when they seek licenses.
4. Plaintiffs seek to protect and vindicate their right to earn a living without being subjected to the unconstitutionally arbitrary and discriminatory barrier established by state law. Plaintiffs seek declaratory judgment that the challenged laws and policies are invalid, unenforceable, and void, permanent injunctions against any further enforcement of the challenged law, or implementation of any similar policy by the Defendants, and reasonable attorney’s fees. 42 U.S.C.
§ 1988.
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JURISDICTION AND VENUE
5. Plaintiffs allege deprivation of rights secured by the Due Process and Equal Protection Clauses of the Fourteenth Amendment as protected by 42 U.S.C. § 1983. Plaintiff Adam Sweet also alleges the deprivation of rights secured by the Privileges or Immunities Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment as protected by 42 U.S.C. § 1983. Jurisdiction over their claims is vested in this Court by 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331, 2201, and 2202. Also, Plaintiff Adam Sweet alleges the violation of rights secured by Article I, Section 20 of the Oregon Constitution. Jurisdiction of this pendent state claim is vested in this Court by 28 U.S.C. § 1367.
6. Venue is proper in this District under 28 U.S.C. § 1391 (b) on the grounds that some or all of the conduct at issue took place in, and/or some or all of Defendants reside in, the District of Oregon.


Plaintiffs

PARTIES


7. Plaintiff Adam Sweet is a United States citizen and a resident of Portland, Oregon.
8. In April 2006, Adam Sweet and his step-brother Jared Wood began earning extra money by using their pickup truck to help people with simple and spontaneous moving jobs. Due to their success and word-of-mouth recommendations, by July 2006, Adam and Jared bought a moving truck and began to operate full-time as a moving company. They named their company 2Brothers Moving & Delivery, and provided a range of services, including furniture deliveries, packing and loading, and full service moving, to both residential and commercial clients.
9. Plaintiff 2Brothers Moving & Delivery (hereinafter “2Brothers”) is a Washington corporation incorporated in 2008. 2Brothers brings this action on its own behalf, and as successor in interest to Adam Sweet doing business as 2Brothers Moving & Delivery.
10. During their two years of operation, Plaintiffs have developed a loyal and satisfied clientele. In 2007, Plaintiffs moved over 325 people in Portland, employing 2 full-time, 4 part-time, and 3 “on-call” movers.  Plaintiffs are ready, willing, and able to provide a variety of moving

services at any time in the future when such opportunities arise. Plaintiffs do not have a Certificate to Transport Household Goods or Passengers under ORS 825.110.
Defendants
11. Defendant Hardy Myers is the Attorney General of Oregon. In his official capacity, he is charged with the enforcement, maintenance, and interpretation of the laws of the state of Oregon, including ORS 825.110. Attorney General Myers has the authority to enjoin, fine, and otherwise prohibit Plaintiffs and other persons from practicing the trade of a mover without a certificate in violation of ORS 825 et seq. See ORS 825.950; ORS 825.955; ORS 825.960. In all of his actions and omissions alleged herein, Defendant was acting under color of state law and is being sued in this action in his official capacity pursuant to Ex Parte Young, 209 U.S. 123 (1908).
12. Defendants Gail Achterman, Michael Nelson, Janice Wilson, Alan Brown, and David Lohman are members of the Oregon Transportation Commission (hereinafter “Commission”) at the Oregon Department of Transportation (hereinafter “Department”). Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and on that basis allege, that the members of the Commission, in their official capacities, are authorized to adopt any rules and establish any policy where a statute gives such power to the Department, including the authority to adopt and enforce ORS 825.110. See ORS 184.616 (1). The Commission also oversees all activities and programs within the Motor Carrier Division. In all of their actions and omissions alleged herein, Defendants were acting under color of state law and are being sued in this action in their official capacity pursuant to Ex Parte Young, 209 U.S. 123 (1908).
13. Defendant Matthew Garrett is the Director of Transportation at the Oregon Department of Transportation. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and on that basis allege, that Mr. Garrett, in his official capacity, serves as the chief administrative officer of the Department, and is responsible for carrying out policies adopted by the Commission including duties and responsibilities concerning drivers and motor vehicles, highways, motor carriers, public transit, rail, and transportation safety.   ORS 184.615 (3).   In all of his actions and omissions alleged herein,

Defendant was acting under color of state law and is being sued in this action in his official capacity pursuant to Ex Parte Young, 209 U.S. 123 (1908).
14. Defendant Gregg Dal Ponte is the Administrator of the Motor Carrier Transportation Division at the Oregon Department of Transportation. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and on that basis allege, that Mr. Dal Ponte, in his official capacity, is responsible for planning within the Division, for relationships between the Department and persons affected by operations of the Division, and for advocacy of the Division within the Department’s planning and operations processes. ORS 184.615 (4). In all of his actions and omissions alleged herein, Defendant was acting under color of state law and is being sued in this action in his official capacity pursuant to Ex Parte Young, 209 U.S. 123 (1908).
GENERAL ALLEGATIONS I
THE CHALLENGED LAW
15. Oregon state law requires any person providing moving services while operating a motor vehicle to obtain a certificate from the Department. This certificate is called the Oregon Intrastate Certificate to Transport Household Goods or Passengers (hereinafter “Certificate”). ORS
825.005 (7)(a); ORS 825.110. A person applies for a Certificate by filing out an Application for an Oregon Intrastate Certificate to Transport Household Goods or Passengers, Form #735-9057. A true and correct copy of the Application is attached hereto as Exhibit A, and incorporated here by reference.
16. Once a person applies for a Certificate, the law directs the Department to notify every moving company that already has a certificate, or has an application for a certificate pending before the Department. ORS 825.110 (1). These existing competitors within the moving business are given
15 days to protest against the application  by  responding  to  the  Department’s  notice. ORS 825.110 (1).

17. When a person applies for a Certificate, the general public is not notified, and members of the general public are not  statutorily  authorized  to  protest  these  applications. ORS 825.110 (1). Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and on that basis allege, that no member of the general public has ever filed a protest against any Certificate application in the past, and that protests have always been filed by existing carriers.
18. When a protest is filed by an existing carrier or competitor, the statute provides that the Department must hold a hearing, and a notice of the hearing must be served upon the applicant and any person who has filed a protest. ORS 825.110 (1).
19. If no existing moving business files a protest, the Department may nevertheless require that the applicant be subject to a hearing. ORS 825.110 (1). These are called “staff interventions.” See Exhibit A at 1. The stated purpose for such “staff interventions” is for the Department to be “fully and properly informed” when its staff is “concerned that applicants are fit to properly provide the proposed service.” ORS 825.110 (1); see Exhibit A at 1. The statute provides no guidelines or criteria as to when a staff may on its own authority require an applicant to be subject to the burdensome hearing procedure.
20. At the hearing, the applicant has the burden to show a “public interest” or a “public need” by submitting evidence that his or her proposed service “is or will be required by the present or future public convenience and necessity.” ORS 825.110 (4)(c); see Exhibit A at 1.
21. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and on that basis allege, that there is no statute or regulation defining what constitutes a showing of a “public interest” or a “public need” or a “present or future public convenience and necessity.”
22. If no protest is filed, or if all protests are withdrawn, the Department may order the issuance of the Certificate without a hearing, and the applicant is not required to prove a public interest or a public need for his or her proposed services. ORS 825.110 (2), (3).
23. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and on that basis allege, that this statutory mechanism allows existing companies to prevent newcomers from entering the moving business

and/or to impose significant start-up costs in order to protect existing businesses from competition, thus creating an artificial scarcity of moving services and allowing existing companies to keep prices artificially high. In 2007, Plaintiffs charged 11 to 35 percent less than the existing companies’ prices for the same moving services.
24. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and on that basis allege, that this statutory mechanism has no rational connection to the public health, safety, or welfare, or any other legitimate government interest.
25. The application form used by the Department instructs the applicant to prove a “public need” by presenting testimony of “supporting shippers,” defined as persons who (1) need the type of service the applicant proposes to offer; (2) have had trouble obtaining that service from existing carriers; and (3) would use the applicant’s service if the application was granted. See Exhibit A at 1.
26. The application indicates that the “number of supporting shippers required to prove public need depends on the nature of the proposed service and the shipper’s needs.” Id. For example, “the testimony of a person who frequently ships large amounts might have the same weight as the testimony of several people who occasionally ship small amounts.” Id. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and on that basis allege, that the application form fails to indicate any criteria the Department may use for determining whether an applicant has successfully demonstrated a “public convenience and necessity” for its proposed services.
27. The testimonies of “supporting shippers” are binding to the extent that when applications are granted, operating authority normally is restricted to that required to meet the needs expressed by the shipper witnesses. See Exhibit A at 1. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and on that basis allege, that this restriction creates an artificial scarcity in the supply of moving services, protects existing businesses against competition, and does not rationally relate to protecting the public health, safety, or welfare.

28. The application further provides that transfers of an existing certificate do not need to line up supporting shippers if the transfer applicant has records which show that “the public has already relied on the transferor’s service for the full scope of the authority requested to be transferred.” Exhibit A at 1.
29. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and on that basis allege, that during 2006 and 2007, the only Certificate applications that were denied were those for new operations, i.e. market entrants, and that applications to transfer or extend existing operations were granted because no protests were filed or protests were withdrawn.
30. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and on that basis allege, that other motor carrier occupations, such as taxis, limousines, and farm vehicle operators that are substantially similar in nature to Plaintiffs, are not subject to the statutory provisions allowing protests from existing competitors, and are not statutorily required to show a “public convenience and necessity” for their proposed services in order to obtain a permit to operate in Oregon. These substantially similar occupations are also under the regulatory purview of the Defendants. See ORS 825.017 (2); ORS 825.017 (17); ORS 825.024 (1)(d).
31. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and on that basis allege, that non regular-route, full-service moving companies are not subject to protests from existing competitors and are not required to show a public convenience and necessity for their proposed services in order to obtain a certificate to operate in Oregon. See ORS 825.017(9); Exhibit A at 1.
II
INJUNCTIVE RELIEF ALLEGATIONS
32. On February 7, 2008, the Clackamas County Sheriff’s Office fined Plaintiffs for violations of two statutes: (1) performance of pack and load services without a permit under ORS 825.245, and (2) operating a moving truck without a Certificate.  Plaintiffs were fined a total of
$1,281 for these violations. A true and correct copy of the citations is attached hereto as Exhibit B, and incorporated here by reference.

33. On March 14, 2008, the Department fined Plaintiffs a civil penalty of $100 for holding out to the public as willing to provide moving services on February 7, 2008, without a Certificate under ORS 825.110. Plaintiffs paid the fine on May 20, 2008. A true and correct copy of the Order is attached hereto as Exhibit C, and incorporated here by reference.
34. Plaintiff Adam Sweet appeared at the Clackamas County Circuit Court on April 14, 2008, for a hearing regarding the February 7, 2008 fines and related penalties. The Court found Plaintiffs guilty for operating moving services without a Certificate in violation of ORS 825.110, and upheld a reduced fine of $322. See Exhibit B at 1. Plaintiffs paid the $322 fine on May 12, 2008.
35. Since February 7, 2008, Plaintiffs have ceased their full-service operations because Plaintiffs can no longer use their own truck to provide moving services to their customers without a Certificate.
36. Plaintiffs are subject to future fines and penalties if they operate full-service moving services with their truck without a Certificate.
37. Due to Defendants’ enforcement of challenged statutes, Plaintiffs and others similarly situated, are and will continue to be denied the right to operate as a full-service moving company and to earn a living in their chosen common occupation.
38. If not enjoined by this Court, Defendants and their agents, representatives, and employees will continue to implement the provisions of the challenged law, and other similar policies and practices, that deny Plaintiffs their constitutional rights without due process, violate their right to equal protection of the laws, and deprive Plaintiff Adam Sweet of the privileges or immunities of citizenship. In particular, the Defendants’ enforcement policies will continue to deprive Plaintiffs of the opportunity to perform as a full-service moving company. This course of conduct will cause Plaintiffs to suffer irreparable injury, including but not limited to, loss of business opportunities and the deprivation of their livelihoods. Plaintiffs have no plain, speedy, and adequate remedy at law for such an injury.

39. Accordingly, injunctive relief pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1983 and other authority is appropriate.
III
DECLARATORY RELIEF ALLEGATIONS
40. Plaintiffs incorporate and reallege each and every allegation contained in the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint.
41. An actual and substantial controversy exists between Plaintiffs and Defendants as to their respective legal rights and duties. Plaintiffs contend that both on their face and as applied to Plaintiffs, the challenged laws violate the Due Process and Equal Protection Clauses of the Fourteenth Amendment and 42 U.S.C. § 1983. Plaintiff Adam Sweet also alleges that ORS 825.110, both on its face and as applied to him, violates the Privileges or Immunities Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment and 42 U.S.C. § 1983, as well as Article I, Section 20 of the Oregon Constitution. On all counts, Defendants contend otherwise.
42. Accordingly, declaratory relief pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 2201 is appropriate.


FIRST CLAIM FOR RELIEF (DUE PROCESS OF LAW;
U.S. CONST. AMEND. XIV & 42 U.S.C. § 1983)
46. Plaintiffs incorporate and reallege each and every allegation contained in the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint.
47. The protest and hearing procedures established in ORS 825.110 do not bear any relationship to protecting the public health, safety, or welfare.
48. As a result of the challenged law, Plaintiffs are not allowed to engage in their chosen occupation as a mover of household goods unless they submit to a certification procedure that unfairly grants exclusive authority to existing businesses to protest against their own potential competitors entering the market.

49. In addition, ORS 825.110 creates an inherent conflict of interest which allows existing competitors to restrict or substantially burden their own competition. See New State Ice Co. v. Leibmann, 285 U.S. 262 (1932).
50. The requirement in ORS 825.110 that any applicant for a certificate to operate as a full-service moving companymust be subject to protests byexisting competitors creates an arbitrary, irrational, and fundamentally unfair procedure which infringes on the right of Plaintiffs to pursue their chosen occupation providing moving services in Oregon.
51. By enforcing the arbitrary, irrational, and fundamentally unfair procedure established in ORS 825.110, Defendants acting under color of state law, are depriving and will continue to deprive Plaintiffs of their constitutional right to earn a living in a chosen profession without due process of law.
52. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and on that basis allege, that Defendants believe that their actions comply with all applicable laws.
53. An actual controversyexists between the parties, and Plaintiffs will continue to suffer an ongoing and irreparable harm unless the ORS 825.110 requirement for market entrants to show a public convenience and necessity as defined therein is declared unlawful and enjoined by this Court.
SECOND CLAIM FOR RELIEF (EQUAL PROTECTION—ARBITRARY AND IRRATIONAL DISCRIMINATION;
U.S. CONST. AMEND. XIV & 42 U.S.C. § 1983)
54. Plaintiffs incorporate and reallege each and every allegation contained in the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint.
55. By granting existing carriers the exclusive authority to protest against certificate applications, ORS 825.110 creates an irrational and arbitrary procedure which protects established businesses against competition.

56. By enforcing these fundamentally unfair procedures, Defendants, acting under color of state law, are irrationally and arbitrarily discriminating against Plaintiffs and in favor of existing moving businesses in violation of Plaintiffs’ right to equal protection of the laws.
57. Allowing established moving companies an exclusive and special opportunity to prevent competitors from entering the moving business bears no rational connection to public health, safety, or welfare.
58. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and on that basis allege, that Defendants believe that their actions comply with all applicable laws.
59. An actual controversy exists between the parties, and Plaintiffs are suffering an ongoing and irreparable harm by Defendants’ discriminatory treatment, and the harm will continue unless the ORS 825.110 protest and hearing requirement is declared unlawful and enjoined by this Court.
THIRD CLAIM FOR RELIEF (EQUAL PROTECTION—ARBITRARY
AND IRRATIONAL CLASSIFICATION OF REGULAR ROUTE, FULL SERVICE MOVERS;
U.S. CONST. AMEND. XIV & 42 U.S.C. § 1983)
60. Plaintiffs incorporate and reallege each and every allegation contained in the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint.
61. Oregon’s motor carrier statutes arbitrarily and irrationally classify regular route, full- service movers as subject to the protest and hearing requirements in ORS 825.110, while exempting other similar motor carrier occupations from these requirements.
62. ORS 825.110 requires regular route, full-service movers to obtain a certificate via a procedure that allows existing businesses to protest the creation of competing businesses, but other types of motor carrier businesses, including other types of moving businesses, are subject to certificate requirements that do not allow existing businesses to protest their applications. This distinction between the procedures for certifying regular-route, full-service movers and other types

of movers and motor carrier businesses bears no rational connection to public health, safety, or welfare.
63. By enforcing the discriminatory, arbitrary, and irrational distinction created by ORS 825.110, Defendants, acting under color of state law, arbitrarily and irrationally discriminate against Plaintiffs and other regular route, full-service movers entering the moving services market, in violation of Plaintiffs’ right to equal protection of the laws.
64. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and on that basis allege, that Defendants believe that their actions comply with all applicable laws.
65. An actual controversy exists between the parties, and Plaintiffs are suffering an ongoing and irreparable harm by Defendants’ discriminatory treatment, and the harm will continue unless the ORS 825.110 protest and hearing requirement is declared unlawful and enjoined by this Court.
FOURTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF
(EQUAL PROTECTION AND DUE PROCESS OF LAW: UNBRIDLED DISCRETION OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS;
U.S. CONST. AMEND. XIV & 42 U.S.C. § 1983)
66. Plaintiffs incorporate and reallege each and every allegation contained in the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint.
67. ORS 825.110, and the regulations and procedures Defendants have adopted to enforce ORS 825.110, grant Defendants and their staff unlimited and unguided discretion to interpret what constitutes a “public need” or “public convenience and necessity” in its enforcement of the protest and hearing requirements in ORS 825.110.
68. The Defendants, acting under color of state law, grant the Department’s staff unbridled discretion to impose burdensome hearing procedures on applicants through broadly- authorized “staff interventions” without providing notice to applicants as to when or why such staff interventions may be imposed.

69. By exercising unlimited, unguided discretion over applications for Certificates, Defendants, acting under color of state law, violate Plaintiffs’ right to equal protection and due process of law as guaranteed by the Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution and 42 U.S.C. § 1983.
70. Plaintiffs are informed and believe, and on that basis allege, that Defendants believe that their actions comply with all applicable laws.
71. An actual controversy exists between the parties, and Plaintiffs are suffering an ongoing and irreparable harm by Defendants’ discriminatory treatment, and the harm will continue unless the ORS 825.110 protest and hearing requirement is declared unlawful and enjoined by this Court.
FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF BY PLAINTIFF ADAM SWEET
(PRIVILEGES OR IMMUNITIES;
U.S. CONST. AMEND. XIV & 42 U.S.C. § 1983)
72. Plaintiff Adam Sweet incorporates and realleges each and every allegation contained in the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint.
73. By mandating a discriminatory protest and hearing procedure for an application to operate as a moving carrier, Defendants, acting under color of state law, arbitrarily and unreasonably interfere with Plaintiff Sweet’s constitutional right to earn a living in a lawful occupation in violation of the privileges or immunities clause of the Fourteenth Amendment of the United States Constitution.
74. Plaintiff Sweet is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that Defendants believe that their actions comply with all applicable laws.
75. An actual controversy exists between the parties, and Plaintiff Sweet is suffering an ongoing and irreparable harm by Defendants’ favoritism towards existing carriers and their discriminatory treatment against Plaintiff Sweet, and the harm will continue unless the ORS 825.110 protest and hearing requirement is declared unlawful and enjoined by this Court.

FIFTH CLAIM FOR RELIEF BY PLAINTIFF ADAM SWEET
(PRIVILEGES OR IMMUNITIES UNDER OREGON CONST., ART. I, SECTION 20)
76. Plaintiff Adam Sweet incorporates and realleges each and every allegation contained in the preceding paragraphs of this Complaint.
77. By mandating a discriminatory protest and hearing procedure for an application to operate as a moving carrier, Defendants, acting under color of state law, arbitrarily and unreasonably interfere with Plaintiff Sweet’s constitutional right to earn a living in a lawful occupation in violation of the privileges or immunities clause of Article I, Section 20 of the Oregon Constitution.
78. Plaintiff Sweet is informed and believes, and on that basis alleges, that Defendants believe that their actions comply with all applicable laws.
79. An actual controversy exists between the parties, and Plaintiff Sweet is suffering an ongoing and irreparable harm by Defendants’ favoritism towards existing carriers and their discriminatory treatment against Plaintiff Sweet, and the harm will continue unless the ORS 825.110 protest and hearing requirement is declared unlawful and enjoined by this Court.
PRAYER
WHEREFORE, Plaintiffs respectfully request relief as follows:
(1) To enter a declaratory judgment that Oregon’s motor carrier certification requirement under ORS 825.110, facially and as interpreted and applied by Defendants, violates the Due Process Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution and 42 U.S.C. § 1983;
(2) To enter a declaratory judgment that Oregon’s motor carrier certification requirement under ORS 825.110, facially and as interpreted and applied by Defendants, violates the Equal Protection Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution and 42 U.S.C.
§ 1983;
(3) To enter a declaratory judgment that Oregon’s motor carrier certification requirement under ORS 825.110, facially and as interpreted and applied by Defendants, violates the Privileges

or Immunities Clause of the Fourteenth Amendment to the United States Constitution and 42 U.S.C.
§ 1983;
(4) To enter a declaratory judgment that Oregon’s motor carrier certification requirement under ORS 825.110, facially and as interpreted and applied by Defendants to favor existing carriers while barring market entrants, violates Article I, Section 20 of the Oregon Constitution;
(5) To permanently enjoin Defendants, their agents, representatives, and employees, from enforcing ORS 825.110 or any similar policy, as well as any and all implementing rules and regulations and the policies and practices by which Defendants enforce these provisions, including, but not limited to: the policies of prohibiting Plaintiffs from operating as a full-service moving company without being subject to the arbitrary and discriminatory certification scheme under ORS 825.110, and seeking or imposing fines or penalties against the Plaintiffs, or otherwise subjecting Plaintiffs to harassment;
(6) For costs of suit;

(7) For reasonable attorneys’ fees, pursuant to 42 U.S.C. § 1988 (b); and
(8) Any such further legal and equitable relief as the Court may deem just and proper. DATED: June 4, 2008.
Respectfully submitted,
ROSS A. DAY
Oregonians in Action
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